
For a meeting of the
COUNCIL
to be held on

THURSDAY, 22 SEPTEMBER 2016
at

2.00 PM
in the

COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNCIL OFFICES, ST. PETER'S HILL, 
GRANTHAM. NG31 6PZ

Beverly Agass, Chief Executive    

Members of the Council are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the 
items of business listed below.

For those Councillors who wish to attend, prayers will be held in the 
Council Chamber at 1:55pm before the commencement of the meeting. 
Please be seated by 1:50pm.

1. PUBLIC OPEN FORUM

The public open forum will commence after prayers and the following formal 
business of the Council will commence at 2.30 p.m. or whenever the public 
open forum ends, if earlier.

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

3. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting.

4. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 16 JUNE 2016

(Enclosure)

AGENDA



5. COMMUNICATIONS (INCLUDING CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS)

6. GRANTHAM HOSPITAL

Dr. Suneil Kapadia (Medical Director) and Mark Brassington (Chief Operating 
Officer) from United Lincolnshire Hospitals Trust will attend the meeting.

7. GO GRANTHAM BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Council will receive a presentation on proposals relating to Go Grantham 
Business Improvement District from Stuart Pigram, Simon Beardsley, Sonia 
Braybrook and Rachel Chadwick.

8. STRATEGIC ALLIANCE - GREATER CAMBRIDGESHIRE GREATER 
PETERBOROUGH (GCGP) LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP

Report number SEG20 of the Chief Executive. (Enclosure)

9. MEMBERS ON COMMITTEES AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT GROUPS

Report number LDS181 of the Chief Executive. (Enclosure)

10. REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE BODIES

Report number LDS180 of the Chief Executive. (Enclosure)

11. LEADER'S REPORT ON URGENT DECISIONS

Report number CAB021 of the Leader of the Council. (Enclosure)

12. MEMBERS' OPEN QUESTIONS

A 45-minute period in which members may ask questions of the Leader, 
Executive Members, the Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen of the Policy 
Development Groups and opposition group leaders excluding the Chairman 
and Vice-Chairman of the Development Control Committee, Licensing and 
Alcohol, Entertainment and Late Night Refreshment Licensing Committees and 
Governance and Audit Committee.

13. QUESTIONS WITHOUT DISCUSSION

To note the list of questions asked under Council procedure rule 11.1 as 
circulated at the start of the meeting and their reference to the relevant Policy 
Development Group.



14. NOTICES OF MOTION  GIVEN UNDER COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 12:

Motion 1

From: Councillor Ray Wootten

That this Council understands the staffing shortages throughout health and 
care services in Lincolnshire and the decision to temporarily close emergency 
services at Grantham Hospital if patient safety is at risk. However, this Council 
urges United Lincolnshire Hospitals Trust to re-instate those services at the 
hospital at the earliest opportunity. 

The deadline for notices of motion for the Council meeting on Thursday, 17 
November 2016 is 2pm on Friday 4 November 2016



PRESENT
Councillor Mrs Judy Smith Chairman

Councillor Bob Adams
Councillor Duncan Ashwell
Councillor Ashley Baxter
Councillor Stephen Benn
Councillor Mrs Pam Bosworth
Councillor Terl Bryant
Councillor Mrs Frances Cartwright
Councillor George Chivers
Councillor Michael Cook
Councillor Kelham Cooke
Councillor Lynda Coutts
Councillor Felicity Cunningham
Councillor Phil Dilks
Councillor Barry Dobson
Councillor Damian Evans
Councillor Mike Exton
Councillor Breda Griffin
Councillor Graham Jeal
Councillor Mrs Rosemary Kaberry-Brown

Councillor Ms Jane Kingman
Councillor Matthew Lee
Councillor Nikki Manterfield
Councillor David Mapp
Councillor Charmaine Morgan
Councillor Nick Neilson
Councillor Helen Powell
Councillor Robert Reid
Councillor Bob Sampson
Councillor Ian Selby
Councillor Jacky Smith
Councillor Peter Stephens
Councillor Judy Stevens
Councillor Frank Turner
Councillor Dean Ward
Councillor Mrs Andrea Webster
Councillor Hannah Westropp
Councillor Paul Wood
Councillor Mrs Linda Wootten

OFFICERS OFFICERS

Chief Executive (Beverly Agass)
Strategic Directors (Tracey Blackwell, 
Daren Tuner)
Executive Manager, Corporate (Lucy 
Youles)

Business Manager, Spatial and 
Economic Growth (Roger Ranson)
Principal Democracy Officer (Jo Toomey)

The Chairman opened the meeting by welcoming Councillor Stephen Benn as a new 
member of the Council.

MINUTES
COUNCIL
THURSDAY, 16 JUNE 2016
2.00 PM

Agenda Item 4



2

23. ACTS OF WORSHIP AT FULL COUNCIL MEETINGS

Prior to prayers, a point of order was raised. Provision relating to prayers, 
remembrances and acts of worship was not contained in the Council’s 
Constitution. Members’ attention was also drawn to guidance provided by the 
Department of Communities and Local Government with regard to the Local 
Government (Religious etc. Observances) Act 2015. In light of the guidance he 
requested a legal ruling on holding prayers within the meeting without it 
appearing as an agenda item. The Monitoring Officer explained that, when 
Council had agreed to introduce it as part of the meeting in September 2015, 
prayers were included on the summons but not as an agenda item of business. 
This had consistently been applied since the Council decision.

24. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Craft, Forman, Goral, 
King, Dr. Moseley, Robins, Russell, Adam Stokes, Ian Stokes, Mrs. Sarah 
Stokes, Mrs. Brenda Sumner, Brian Sumner, Wilkins, Woolley and Ray 
Wootten.

25. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

No disclosable pecuniary interests were disclosed. Councillor Baxter declared 
that he was a member of Deepings Library and Deepings Community Centre.

26. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 21 APRIL 2016 AND THE 
EXTRAORDINARY METING HELD ON 26 MAY 2016

The minutes of the meetings held on 21 April 2016 and 26 May 2016 were 
proposed, seconded and agreed as a correct record.

27. COMMUNICATIONS (INCLUDING CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS)

The Council noted the Chairman’s engagements.

28. CORPORATE PLAN 2016-2020

Decision:

Council approves the Corporate Plan 2016-2020 and supports its aims 
and objectives.

In proposing the recommendation in report number CM03/2016 that the Council 
approve the refreshed corporate plan for 2016-2020, the Leader talked about 
the aim to make the district a better place to live, work, visit, study and enjoy, 
recognising its strong identity and diverse composition of 4 market towns and 
large rural areas. He stated that the agenda set out in the corporate plan was 
ambitious but deliverable in the context of reducing resources to create right 
environment for communities and businesses to flourish and be resilient.

As part of the refreshed corporate plan, the Leader announced changes to the 



3

Portfolios held by Executive Members. Those changes are set out in the table 
below:

Executive member Portfolio
Councillor Adams Growth
Councillor Bryant Finance and IT
Councillor Mrs. Cartwright Governance
Councillor Cooke Arts and Leisure
Councillor Craft Environment
Councillor Mrs. Wootten Housing

The proposition was seconded. The Chief Executive then gave a presentation 
which summarised contextual statistical information that had been used to 
inform the refresh of the corporate plan document. The presentation also 
included information, which related to the aims and vision set out in the 
corporate plan, progress made against each priority area in the previous 
iteration of the plan, savings achieved by the Council and feedback from 
consultation with residents in 2013/14 to 2015/16. Based on that, two 
streamlined priorities had been identified: open for business and commercial 
and customer focus.

Members were given the opportunity to ask questions on the draft plan. A 
number spoke in support of the vision and objectives, however the point was 
made that it was the responsibility of all members to ensure that action was 
taken to achieve those objectives.

Some comments were made about how the plan’s objectives in relation to 
housing, with specific reference made to those people who would never be in a 
position to buy their own home, changes that meant housing associations were 
more frequently delivering shared ownership new builds and houses of multiple 
occupation and their impact on neighbouring properties. Other comments 
related to the importance of the local environment, grounds maintenance at key 
gateways into and significant areas of the district, and the Council’s response 
to graffiti and fly-tipping.

Procedures and policies to deliver the plan’s objectives would be considered at 
policy development groups, so all members would have an opportunity to put 
forward their ideas.

Some members expressed concerns about reductions in revenue support grant 
and the potential affect it may have on business rates and council tax.

Some discussion ensued in relation to retaining skills in the district and 
understanding the skills required to meet the needs of current employers. 
Recognition was also made of the link between retaining appropriate skills and 
attracting new business and employment to the district.

A suggestion was made that when the Council developed similar documents in 
future, it might help local communities understand the impact of the plans by 
providing a summary of what was happening in each area. Additional 



4

comments were made in relation to clearly defining what was meant by leisure 
and culture; specifying whether it was arts, sports, retail, etc. and how it needed 
to go beyond the Georgian and Gravity Fields Festivals. 

The Leader was given the opportunity to sum up; in so doing he referred to the 
Council’s strategic position and the relationship the Council had with both the 
Greater Lincolnshire and the Peterborough and Cambridge Local Enterprise 
Partnerships. He also re-highlighted a number of other key points that had 
been raised during the discussion.

On being put to the vote, the Corporate Plan 2016-2020 was approved.

29. BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT - DELEGATION OF TECHNICAL 
ROLES

Decision:

Council delegates to the Strategic Director, Development and Growth 
authority with respect to compliance with the Council’s technical roles 
and responsibilities in relation to the establishment of Business 
Improvement Districts (BIDs) namely:

1. The veto of BID proposals

2. The submission of BID proposals

3. The content of BID proposals

4. The provision of rating list data

5. The statement of existing baseline services

6. The collection of the BID levy

7. The provision of ballot services

The Executive Member for Growth presented report number SEG019 on the 
delegation of technical roles and responsibilities regarding emerging Business 
Improvement District proposals and proposed the recommendations in the 
report. As a result of the technical nature of the document, he read out a 
summary, a copy of which he stated would be made available in the minutes of 
the meeting: 

“Members will be aware that Go Grantham Ltd. Is seeking to bring forward 
proposals to establish a Business Improvement District for Grantham. This is a 
business-led partnership focussed on improving and enhancing the economic 
well-being of the town.

The Council, as a business rate payer, will be able to vote in favour or against 
the proposals to establish a Business Improvement District at the appropriate 
time. The ballot of business ratepayers is currently scheduled to take place 



5

during the month of November. 

In addition to voting, the Council has significant technical responsibilities with 
regard to the development and assessment of the BID proposals. These are 
set out in Government regulations. Essentially these aspects cover checking 
that the BID proposals are in line with the Government regulations; providing 
information to Go Grantham on business ratepayers; managing the collection of 
the BID levy; and arranging the ballot.

The Council has three weeks to assess that the BID proposals are fit for 
purpose. These are due to be received at the start of August.”

The proposals were seconded and debate ensued. Some concern was 
expressed about the extent of the delegation with respect to the veto of the BID 
proposals. Reassurance was provided that the reasons for veto were provided 
for in Regulations, these included  that the proposal must not conflict with 
existing local authority policies or placed disproportionate burden on a 
particular business.

On being put to the vote the proposition was carried.

30. MEMBERSHIP OF THE COUNCIL'S COMMITTEES AND POLICY 
DEVELOPMENT GROUPS

Decision:

1. That Councillor Stephen Benn replaces Councillor Hannah 
Westropp on the Growth Policy Development Group

2. That Councillor Stephen Benn replaces Councillor Mrs. Pam 
Bosworth on the Development Control Committee

Report number LDS178 informed members that following the Deeping St. 
James by-election, at which Councillor Stephen Benn was elected, no changes 
to the membership of any committees, panels or policy development groups 
were necessary to comply with political balance requirements. As Councillor 
Westropp had resigned from the Growth Policy Development Group and 
Councillor Mrs Bosworth had resigned from the Development Control 
Committee, the Leader was invited to make nominations to fill those vacancies. 
Councillor Benn was nominated to fill both vacancies; this was seconded and, 
on being put to the vote, carried.

31. RECOMMENDATIONS FROM CONSTITUTION COMMITTEE

Decision:

1. That the issue of prayers at council meetings be referred back to 
the Constitution Committee for further discussion

2. That until the Constitution Committee has met and a final decision 
has been made by Council, the arrangement for prayers and acts of 



6

observance  should revert to those used prior to September 2015, 
when prayers were held five-minutes before the start of the 
meeting.

The Vice-Chairman of the Constitution Committee proposed the 
recommendations it had made at its meeting on 16 May 2016 as presented in 
report number LDS179, which were subsequently seconded.

One member expressed concerns, reiterating earlier comments about the 
guidance from the Department of Communities and Local Government. Further 
concern was raised with regard to equality and diversity and the risk of making 
some members, officers and members of the public feel less accepted.

Consequently an amendment was proposed that prayers be removed from the 
council meeting and that the Council reverts to the arrangements prior to 
September 2015 when those members who wished to be present could attend 
a session five-minutes before a meeting is due to begin. A challenge was made 
that this was not an acceptable amendment as it negated the original 
proposition.

A brief recess ensued to consider the acceptability of the proposed 
amendment. Following the adjournment an alternative to the amendment was 
put forward, requesting that the issue be referred back to the Constitution 
Committee for further consideration and that prayers be moved until Council 
had made a final decision so that they would take place prior to the 
commencement of a meeting. This was seconded.

A number of members spoke on the issue, when key points included the 
importance of having a time when members could get together to reflect, the 
task that the Constitution Committee had faced at its previous meeting was 
trying to produce a solution that supported the decision that the Council had 
made previously and the importance of its considerations at its next meeting to 
ensure that all possible outcomes were considered to enable a final decision to 
be made.

The amendment was put to the vote, which was carried, making it the 
substantive motion. When the substantive motion was put to the vote, it too was 
carried.

32. MEMBERS OPEN QUESTIONS

When the arrangements for open questions were agreed, Council determined 
the way that they should be recorded in the minutes: a schedule would be 
produced that detailed the name of the questioner, the Member to whom the 
question was put and the topic of the question. 

A recording of the question session can be made available on request.



7

Question 1

From: Councillor Ashley Baxter

To: Councillor Terl Bryant

Deepings library

Question 2

From: Councillor Charmaine Morgan

To: Councillor Bob Adams

Grantham hospital

Question 3

From: Councillor Ian Selby

To: Councillor Bob Adams

Tenants carrying out home improvements

Question 4

From: Councillor Phil Dilks

To: Councillor Bob Adams

Deepings library

Question 5

From: Councillor Judy Stevens

To: Councillor Bob Adams

Deepings library

33. CLOSE OF MEETING

The meeting was closed at 17:00.



List of Chairman’s Engagements 
16 June 2016 to 22 September 2016

Date Ref Organisation and Event Location Chauf
Saturday 
18.06.16

JS15 Grantham Carnival Weekend – judging of 
floats

Grantham Market Place 
and parade 

Sunday 
19.06.16

VC2 Mayor of Stamford’s Civic Parade
Incorporating Flag Raising Ceremony for 
Armed Forces

All Saints Church, 
Stamford  

Monday
20.06.16

Fly a Flag for Armed Forces Day Council Offices
Grantham

Thursday
23.06.16

JS22 Inspire Mini Olympics Grantham Sports 
Stadium

Sunday 
26.06.16

JS17 Mayor’s Civic Service Cllr David Wright – 
Melton Borough Council

St Mary the Virgin 
Parish Church, 
Bottesford  

Sunday 
26.06.16

JS13 Grantham Twinning Association 35 years 
celebrations

58 Manthorpe Road
Grantham

Wednesday 
29.06.16

VC4 Walton Girls Visual Art Exhibition Walton Girls’ High 
School, Grantham

Thursday 
30.06.16

JS21 David Ross Education Trust Summer Cup Grantham Meres 
Stadium, Grantham

Saturday 
02.07.16

JS12 Stamford Festival - Judging of Floats Browne’s Hospital
Stamford

Saturday
02.07.16

JS23 Arena UK – As Good as it Gets Arena UK Allington, 

Sunday
03.07.16

JS18 Mayor of Louth’s Civic Service St. James’ Church 
Louth

Sunday
03.07.16

JS19 Mayor of the City of Peterborough’s Civic 
Service 

Peterborough 
Cathedral

Sunday
10.07.16

Chairman’s Civic Service Bourne Abbey Church

Wednesday 
13.07.16 

JS26
VC5

Walton Girls’ High School Summer 
Concert: 50 years of Musical Theatre 2016

Walton Girls’ High 
School, Grantham, 

Sunday 
24.07.16

JS25 Chairman of North Kesteven District 
Council’s Civic Service and afternoon tea 

Church of St Oswald,
Blankney

Friday 
29.07.16

VC6 Charity Civic Dinner Market Rasen Town 
Council 

Market Rasen Festival 
Hall

Sunday
31.07.16

DD The Mayor of the City of Peterborough – 
Service to commemorate Sgt Thomas 
Hunter, the Lonely Anzac

Peterborough 
Cathedral

01.09.16 VC8 Town Mayor of Newark’s “Dad’s Army” 
Charity Quiz Night

Newark Town Hall

Saturday
03.09.16

Merchant Navy Day Civic Flag Pole

Saturday
03.09.16

VC9 Mayor of Rushden’s Proms in the Park Rushden Hall

Sunday
04.09.16

JS24 Chairman of East Northamptonshire 
Council’s Civic Service

St Peter’s Church,
Oundle 

Sunday 
11.09.16

JS28 The Chairman & Lady of Lincolnshire 
County Council Service of Dedication 

Parish Church of St 
Michael and All Angels
Uffington

Sunday 
11.09.16

JS27
 VC7)

Gainsborough’s Civic Service All Saints' Parish 
Church, Gainsborough

Sunday
18.09.16

JS34 Mayor of the Borough of North East 
Lincolnshire’s Civic Service

St. Peter’s Church
Cleethorpes 

Agenda Item 5



REPORT TO COUNCIL

REPORT OF: Chief Executive

REPORT NO: SEG 20

DATE:    22nd September 2016

TITLE: Strategic Alliance - Greater Cambridge Greater 
Peterborough (GCGP) Local Enterprise Partnership

KEY DECISION  OR 
POLICY FRAMEWORK 
PROPOSAL:

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 
NAME AND 
DESIGNATION:

Councillor Bob Adams
Leader of the Council and Executive Member for 
Growth

CONTACT OFFICER: Beverly Agass - b.agass@southkesteven.gov.uk
Steve Ingram - s.ingram@southkesteven.gov.uk
Telephone number: 01476 406007

INITIAL IMPACT
ANALYSIS:

Equality and Diversity

Carried out and 
Referred to in 
paragraph (7) below

Full impact assessment
Required:
Not applicable at this stage

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION ACT:

This report is publicly available via the Your Council 
and  Democracy link on the Council’s website: 
www.southkesteven.gov.uk

BACKGROUND 
PAPERS

Agenda Item 8

mailto:b.agass@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:s.ingram@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/


2

1 RECOMMENDATIONS

1.1 That Council notes the strategic alliance with the Greater Cambridge and Greater 
Peterborough Local Economic Partnership (GCGP LEP).

1.2 That delegation is given to the Chief Executive in consultation with the Leader to sign 
and enter into a memorandum of understanding the GCGP LEP.

2 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

2.1 To update Council regarding the progress made in respect of the proactive work 
being undertaken in order to support the growth of our local economy and specifically 
in respect of the development of a more formalised relationship with our neighbours, 
to the south of the district. This work is being undertaken alongside developing 
opportunities within the Welland Towns partnership, Greater Lincolnshire Geography, 
the Greater Lincolnshire LEP and the emerging Midlands Engine proposals.

3 BACKGROUND AND CONTEXT

3.1 Whilst SKDC is an active member of the Greater Lincolnshire LEP, due our shared 
economic boundaries and economic geography - a positive contributor to the initial 
development of the GCGP LEP proposition in 2010. With the inception of the 2015-
20 Parliament, the evolving national policies for the further development of LEPs; 
together with the fact that our direct neighbours in Rutland are currently members 
and having regard to South Holland’s recent membership; it is now considered to be 
opportune for SKDC to look to formalise its relationship with the GCGP LEP via an 
effective Strategic Alliance. 

3.2 The formalisation of this arrangement is not intended to undermine, in any way, the 
Council’s well established relationship with the Greater Lincolnshire LEP. Indeed it is 
widely recognised that a buoyant and appropriately enhanced South Kesteven 
economy will be a positive benefit for the whole of Lincolnshire.

Economic Context

3.3 South Kesteven is a large district within southern Lincolnshire with its population 
forecast to grow to at least 150,000 by 2021 at growth rates well above national 
averages. Whilst parts of the district are rural in character, Grantham is already a 
major sub-regional centre (with a growing population of approximately 49,000) with 
major housing and employment growth committed and underway (including two 
significant urban extensions). Stamford (21,000) and Bourne (14,000) are major 
market towns within the south of the district, and The Deepings (around 15,000) is a 
cluster of settlements in close proximity to Peterborough. 

3.4 South Kesteven, with its essential characteristics, could be described as being 
somewhat distinct from the remainder of the administrative county Lincolnshire. 
Highly accessible, it lies on the north/south A1/East Coast Mainline corridor, and is 
geographically closest to Cambridgeshire, to the greater south-east and London and 
also to the markets of the Midlands. It has the highest levels of average resident 
earnings in Lincolnshire; the highest employment participation rates and enterprise 
density; the lowest unemployment rates (and second lowest on the index of multiple 
deprivation); strong NVQ2 skills and some excellent schools. It also hosts a strong 
manufacturing footprint, and the highest proportion of construction activity within the 
county.



3

3.5 The mix of business enterprises within the district is diverse with it being home to 
some global engineering companies , strong food and drink players, global and 
national visitor economy brands (e.g. Burghley, Belton), and a number of distinctive, 
innovative Small to medium enterprises (SMEs). Significantly the district supports a 
very highly regarded quality of life – with both urban and rural areas always scoring 
highly in quality of place surveys. Stamford has topped the Sunday Times most 
desirable places to live in England rankings in recent years and Grantham has 
recently been recognised as being the most affordable location within an easy 
commute of London.

4 THE RELATIONSHIP TO GCGP AND GREATER PETERBOROUGH IN 
PARTICULAR

4.1 Whilst providing a gateway to Lincolnshire the south of the district is intrinsically, both 
economically and geographically, related to the 'Greater Peterborough' city region; 
lying on the same A1/ECML national transport corridors and sharing important east-
west rail links. Consequently, both the travel to work (TTWA) and strategic housing 
market assessment (SHMA) designations already form essential constituent parts of 
the Greater Peterborough economic and growth footprint. As an example of this 
strategic economic pull the Stamford Chamber has recently joined Cambridgeshire.

4.2 Out-commuting from South Kesteven is mainly into Peterborough and Rutland, and 
with a very significant flow to London. Indeed, over 11,000 commuters (approaching 
50% of the total) travel to Peterborough, Rutland and London, with 4,300 to the rest 
of Lincolnshire. In the August 2015 ONS new Travel to work area (TTWA) analyses, 
50% of SKDC Lower Level Super Output Areas (LSOAs) lie wholly within the 
Peterborough TTWA. 

4.3 These clear transport, housing and labour market synergies are matched by 
significant alignment of the district’s industrial composition with its GCGP neighbours: 
Peterborough, Rutland, Kings Lynn & West Norfolk, Fenland, and South Holland. The 
district’s specialisations in agriculture food and drink, manufacturing, distribution, and 
visitor economy employment and enterprise are similar to that of its Greater 
Peterborough neighbours - with Peterborough often playing 'regional service centre' 
roles in business, professional and financial services to SKDC based businesses. 
These synergies extend to specific multi-site operations (and the supply chains) of 
major multi-nationals and global visitor economy brands such as Stamford, Burghley 
and Rutland Water.

5 GOVERNMENT GROWTH PRIORITIES 

5.1 Future local growth for SKDC and GCGP businesses will be significantly enhanced 
by an effective and seamless SKDC-GCGP relationship which is appropriately 
aligned in order to take advantage of Government priorities.

 Transport and infrastructure: The refresh of the National Infrastructure Plan should 
develop new investment priorities on major transport corridors in the light of HS2. 
SKDC GLEP and GCGP have clear synergies in ensuring the A1/East Coast Mainline 
corridors make the most of the opportunities associated with this nationally strategic 
transport infrastructure, and by pressing the case for improvements in shared east-
west links on the Birmingham - Peterborough and Cambridge passenger and 
Felixstowe-Nuneaton freight line.

More locally, the relationships of South Lincolnshire to Greater Peterborough and 
West Norfolk are important employment and business corridors of regional 
significance, and transport infrastructure planning and service management will 



4

benefit from SKDC sitting alongside SHDC and other GCGP partners in supporting 
these processes with linkages to the GLEP.

 Skills and labour market reforms: Given our clear labour market and business 
location synergies, SKDC and particularly 'Greater Peterborough' business require a 
joined–up approach to the local response to national policies such as the Post-16 
area reviews, adult skills devolution, the apprenticeship levy and in addressing the 
relative low density of HE provision across the wider Greater Peterborough economic 
geography on a more holistic basis.

 Local Growth Hubs: Given the considerable supply chain and labour market 
linkages across the Greater Peterborough economic geography, it would be 
appropriate to seek to provide a more seamless service to business across South 
Lincolnshire potentially aligning with the two GLLLEP and GCGP growth hubs.

 Pan regional synergies: To develop and thereafter act as an effective and dynamic 
bridge between GLLEPs involvement in Midlands Engine and an East Anglia (i.e. 
GLLEP/GCGP/NALEP) construct in the same way as South Humberside can to 
Northern Powerhouse. 

5.2 There are also particular synergies in respect of:-

o the three LEPs’ strong established focus agri-tech and land-based economies

o the current European funded LEADER rural development programme already 
covers small parts of Rutland and rural Peterborough and would benefit from 
developing further appropriate synergies with West Norfolk, Cambridgeshire 
Fens, Peterborough and Rutland programmes.

6 WHAT SKDC CAN CONTRIBUTE 

6.1 Given the logic of the southern-facing elements of our shared economic geography 
there is a case for SKDC to formalise more its relationship with the GCGP LEP by to 
entering into a strategic alliance with the LEP alongside South Holland District 
Council in accordance with what was originally envisaged in 2010.

6.2 SKDC’s membership of the GCGPLEP provides:-

 An enhanced  coverage of the South Lincolnshire economic and business community 
- to discharge leadership, partnership and enabling roles for maximising growth and 
encouraging the further proactive development of the  economic geography;

 additional critical mass and synergies for business involvement in major cluster and 
sector development priorities - including manufacturing, agritech (food, drink and land-
based industries), and the visitor economy. This potentially offers significant 
opportunities and gains for major GCGP LEP skills and business support programmes 
(like the growth hub and the agri-tech initiative) in conjunction with the Greater 
Lincolnshire LEP ;

 the ability to enhance relevant national influencing, advocacy and investment 
programming for strategic  infrastructure and service improvements to A1/ECML 
north-south corridor, to the shared major east-west road and rail routes and the 
related technology delivery agenda; and

 a more appropriate  footprint in order to logically expand sub-regional strategic growth 
and skills initiatives and to support the impending transformational changes in skills 



5

provision - including the need to address HE density, FE and adult skills reform issues 
on a  wider basis.

6.3 These agendas are already major priorities for SKDC’s economic growth strategy, 
and involvement of both GLEP and GCGP partners in their shared delivery will be of 
increasing importance over 2015-20. At the same time, the potential comprehensive 
South Lincolnshire membership of GCGP gives the LEP the ideal opportunity to 
deepen and broaden relationships within Greater Lincolnshire - building on existing 
initiatives like the Siemens Global Partnership Programme (with Cambridge and 
Lincoln universities) and the evolving proposition of an expanded Midlands Engine, 
from which South Kesteven would be a natural gateway to the adjoining greater 
eastern area.

7 DETAILS OF REPORT

7.1 The widespread and diverse economic geography of the district means that the 
Council, in respect of its role as a facilitator of local prosperity, should optimise 
opportunity for our business’ to grow and flourish and to attract new inward 
investment to the area. It is clear that the south of our district has a strongly defined 
functional economic inter-relationship with Greater Peterborough.

7.2 In order to further explore the enhancement of this relationship an initial ‘Expression 
of Interest’  was prepared and submitted to the GCGP LEP  setting out both the logic 
underpinning the nature of the district’s economic geography and outlining its intrinsic 
relationship to the Greater Peterborough economic sub-region alongside its position 
as a key strategic gateway to Lincolnshire.

7.3 Discussions with GCGP LEP concluded that it would be beneficial for SKDC to enter 
into a more formalised positive alliance within their economic partnership. Real world 
economies cut across arbitrary district boundaries and indeed that is the case in 
terms of the economy of many parts of the south of our district which clearly look 
towards, and often regard, Peterborough as their major economic destination. 

7.4 Whilst considering a more formalised relationship with GCGP, that in no way implies 
that we would be looking to minimise our established highly effective relationship with 
the Greater Lincolnshire LEP. Positive economic growth within South Kesteven, and 
particularly across the southern part of the district, will be beneficial to both the whole 
of the Greater Lincolnshire economy and in terms of the economic cross-over with 
Greater Peterborough.

7.5 In terms of our potential prospective interactions, it is envisaged that the Council will 
work positively with GCGP and GLEP to encourage inward investment; to support 
skills development; to support rural economic development; to support market town 
retail vitality; to address infrastructure issues and to promote innovation via the 
activities of the GCGP Growth Hub. 

7.6 With regard to governance, it is intended that the Council would enter into a 
Memorandum of Understanding with GCGP, that the Leader and the Chief Executive 
are now invited to attend the GCGP LEP’s Leader’s Committee. Officers will support 
the work of the themes set out above.



6

8 CONCLUSION

8.1 By entering into this more formal alliance with GCGP LEP will enable the council to 
effectively build into our economic strategies, and related action plans, a clear 
acknowledgement of the economic potential of our inter-relationship with Greater 
Peterborough (and also with our adjoining neighbours within both southern 
Lincolnshire and Rutland).

8.2 The formalisation of this arrangement is not intended to undermine, in any way, the 
Council’s well established relationship with the Greater Lincolnshire LEP. Indeed it is 
widely recognised that a buoyant and appropriately enhanced South Kesteven 
economy will be a positive benefit for the whole of Lincolnshire.

9 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

9.1 There is an option not to enter into a closer alliance with our southern neighbours – 
but this would not offer the opportunity to maximise the opportunities of our economic 
geography.

10 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

10.1 In order to access the range of services and support provided by the GCGP LEP a 
one-off contribution of £10k was needed towards the operation of the partnership. 
Membership is ongoing and will allow the Council access to direct and targeted 
support ,access to potential additional funding opportunities and will enable joint 
submissions for growth programmes  by  GCGP LEP and GL LEP something which 
is actively encouraged by Government .

11 ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS

11.1 The growth of the district’s economy which will be supported by this enhanced 
partnership working will be a positive benefit for the whole district. As soon as a 
memorandum of understanding and proposals have been developed, an equality 
impact analysis will be carried out to determine any potential positive and negative 
impact and how any negative impact (if any) can be mitigated.

12 CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

12.1 None

13 COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

13.1 The required one off contribution has been met from efficiencies within the Economic 
Development budget.

14 COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

14.1 Local Enterprise Partnerships (LEPs) are voluntary partnerships between local 
authorities and businesses which were set up in 2011 by the Department for 
Business, Innovation and Skills, to help determine local economic priorities and to 
lead on economic growth and job creation within their local areas. They largely carry 
out the functions previously undertaken by the regional development agencies (which 
were abolished in March 2012). It is accepted practice for authorities to be members 
of more than one LEP where their economic geographies overlap.



Page 1 

REPORT TO COUNCIL 

REPORT OF: Chief Executive   

REPORT NO: LDS181

DATE:    22 September 2016

TITLE: Membership of the Council’s Committees and Policy Development 
Groups

KEY DECISION  
OR POLICY 
FRAMEWORK 
PROPOSAL:

Decision of council

EXECUTIVE 
MEMBER: 
NAME AND 
DESIGNATION:

Councillor Mrs. Frances Cartwright 
Executive Member: Governance 

CONTACT 
OFFICER:

Jo Toomey, Principal Democracy Officer
Telephone: 01476 40 60 80 (Ext. 6152)
E-mail: j.toomey@southkesteven.gov.uk

INITIAL 
IMPACT
ANALYSIS:

Equality and 
Diversity

Carried out and 
Referred to in paragraph (7) 
below

N/A

Full impact assessment
Required:

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION 
ACT:

This report is publicly available via the Your Council and  Democracy link 
on the Council’s website: www.southkesteven.gov.uk

BACKGROUND 
PAPERS

Local Government and Housing Act 1989
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1989/42/part/I/crossheading/political-
balance-on-committees-etc 
Local Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/1990/1553/contents/made

1. RECOMMENDATIONS

That Council makes appointments to fill the following vacancies on the 
Council’s Committees 

 One Conservative vacancy on Development Control Committee
 One Conservative vacancy on Governance and Audit Committee
 The Vice-Chairman position on the Governance and Audit 

Committee
 One Conservative vacancy on the Resources Policy Development 

Group

Agenda Item 9

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1989/42/part/I/crossheading/political-balance-on-committees-etc
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1989/42/part/I/crossheading/political-balance-on-committees-etc
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/1990/1553/contents/made


Page 2 

2. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

2.1 To fill vacancies on committees of the Council and policy development groups 
(PDGs) following the resignation of members from those Committees/PDGs. 

3. DETAILS OF REPORT 

3.1 At its Annual meeting on 21 April 2016, Council appointed members to its 
committees, policy development groups and in accordance with political 
balance requirements within Section 15 of the Local Government and Housing 
Act 1989 and the Local Government (Committees and Political Groups) 
Regulations 1990.

3.2 Since the Annual General Meeting, there have been resignations from three of 
those Committees/policy development groups:

 Councillor Nick Robins has resigned from the Development Control 
Committee

 Councillor Dr. Peter Moseley has resigned both as Vice-Chairman and a 
member of the Governance and Audit Committee

 Councillor Dean Ward has resigned from the Resources Policy 
Development Group

3.3 To ensure that political balance is maintained and the Council’s Committees 
are running with a full complement of members, Council is asked to fill the 
vacancies created by the resignations of Councillor Robins and Councillor Dr. 
Moseley. Council will also need to appoint a new Vice-Chairman to the 
Governance and Audit Committee.

4. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

4.1 The Council must either comply with the provisions of the Local Government 
and Housing Act 1989 and apply the principles of political balance or agree to 
make alternative arrangements.

5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 This report has no resource implications. Finance for special responsibility 
allowances is incorporated within existing budgets.

6. RISK AND MITIGATION 

6.1 No significant risks were identified in the preparation of this report.

7. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS

7.1 An equality analysis is not applicable.

8. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

8.1 No crime and disorder implications arise as a result of this report.



Page 3 

9. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

9.1 There are no financial comments arising from this report.

10. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

10.1 In making appointments to its committees and subcommittees the Council is 
required to comply with the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 (LGHA) 
and the Local Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 
1990. These set out requirements relating to political balance and the 
application of this principle to prescribed categories of meeting and makes 
provision for alternative arrangements. To agree alternative arrangements, no 
members of the authority present at the meeting may vote against the 
alternative arrangements. This means that abstentions would not defeat the 
vote.

10.2 If no alternative arrangements can be agreed, the requirements to address 
political balance must be put in place.

11. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES

11.1 Not applicable

12.     APPENDICES:

 None



Page 1 

REPORT TO COUNCIL

REPORT OF: Chief Executive   

REPORT NO: LDS180

DATE:    22 September 2016

TITLE: Representatives on Outside Bodies

KEY DECISION  OR 
POLICY FRAMEWORK 
PROPOSAL:

Decision for Council

EXECUTIVE MEMBER: 
NAME AND 
DESIGNATION:

Councillor Mrs. Frances Cartwright
Executive Member: Governance

CONTACT OFFICER: Jo Toomey, Principal Democracy Officer
Telephone: 01476 40 60 80 (Ext. 6152)
E-mail: j.toomey@southkesteven.gov.uk

INITIAL IMPACT
ANALYSIS:

Equality and Diversity

Carried out and 
Referred to in 
paragraph (7) below

N/A

Full impact assessment
Required:

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION ACT:

This report is publicly available via the Your Council 
and  Democracy link on the Council’s website: 
www.southkesteven.gov.uk

BACKGROUND 
PAPERS

None

1. RECOMMENDATIONS

1.1 That the Council considers nominations and makes an appointment to the 
Elsea Park Community Trust.

2. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

2.1 In accordance with Article 4.2(v) of the Council’s Constitution, one of the 
functions of full Council is to appoint Councillors to serve as its representatives 
on a variety of outside bodies.

3. DETAILS OF REPORT 

3.1 The Council makes appointments to arrange of outside bodies. Most 
appointments run for four years, coinciding with the quadrennial elections. 
Other appointments have different durations or run between different dates. 

Agenda Item 10

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/


Page 2 

3.2 At the annual meeting of the Council in 2015, following the quadrennial 
elections, Councillor Ms Kingman was appointed as the Council’s 
representative on the Elsea Park Community Trust. On the 21 June Councillor 
Ms Kingman tendered her resignation as the Council’s representative on the 
Trust.

3.3 When the appointment to the Trust was made it was a four-year term so that it 
matched the election cycle for district councillors. Consequently the new 
representative will be appointed for the remainder of Councillors’ current term 
of office, expiring in May 2019.

3.4 There is no formal arrangement whereby political balance must be achieved 
with these appointments – appointments are offered to all members.

4. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

4.1 The Council could decline to make an appointment or appointments unless 
there was a legal requirement to do so.

5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 Travelling expenses are payable to Councillors who attend meetings of outside 
bodies to which they have been appointed by the Council. Provision is made 
within the Legal and Democratic Services budget for the payment of travel 
expenses.

6. RISK AND MITIGATION 

6.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and no specific high risks were 
identified.

7. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS

7.1 Not applicable

8. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

8.1 Not applicable

9. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

9.1 Any financial implications arising from this report have been included in the 
budget for 2016/17.

10. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

10.1 There is now no longer any requirement to register appointment to such bodies 
as disclosable pecuniary interests unless remuneration by way of profit or gain 
is received from the body for attendance or shares or land are held by the 
Member appointed as a trustee or otherwise. 



Page 3 

10.2 In the event that a conflict of interest arises for any Member appointed between 
the interests of the Council and the interests of the body, an interest may need 
to be disclosed whenever the issue to which the interest relates is discussed. 

11. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES

11.1 Not applicable

12.     APPENDICES:

12.1 None



Page 1 

REPORT TO COUNCIL

REPORT OF: Leader of the Council

REPORT NO: CAB021

DATE:    22 September 2016

TITLE: Report on Urgent Decisions

KEY DECISION  
OR POLICY 
FRAMEWORK 
PROPOSAL:

Statutory requirement

EXECUTIVE 
MEMBER: 
NAME AND 
DESIGNATION:

Councillor Bob Adams (Leader of the Council)
Executive Member, Growth

CONTACT 
OFFICER:

Jo Toomey – Principal Democracy Officer
Telephone: 01476 40 60 80 (Ext. 6152)
E-mail: j.toomey@southkesteven.gov.uk

INITIAL IMPACT
ANALYSIS:

Equality and 
Diversity

Carried out and 
Referred to in paragraph 
(7) below

Full impact assessment
Required:

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION 
ACT:

This report is publicly available via the Your Council and  
Democracy link on the Council’s website: 
www.southkesteven.gov.uk

BACKGROUND 
PAPERS

Local Authority (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access 
to Information) (England) Regulations 2012, section 19 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/2089/made 

Agenda Item 11

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/2089/made


Page 2 

1. RECOMMENDATIONS

1.1 That the Council notes the Leader’s report on urgent decisions

2. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

2.1 In accordance with Part 5, Section 19 of the Local Authority (Executive 
Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 
2012, the Leader of the Council is required to submit quarterly reports to the 
Council on executive decisions taken under the special urgency provisions 
during that quarter. The report should include the number of decisions so taken 
and a summary of the matters in respect of which those decisions were taken. If 
no urgent decisions are made, then a quarterly report need not be produced 
however the Leader must submit at least one report annually to the Council.

3. DETAILS OF REPORT 

3.1 Since the last report was brought to Council on 10 September 2015 no 
decisions have been taken under urgency provisions.

4. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

4.1 This is a statutorily required report.

5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 There are no resource implications arising from this report.

6. RISK AND MITIGATION 

6.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and no high risks were 
identified. 

7. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS

7.1 Not applicable, this is a statutory report providing a summary of past activity.

8. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

8.1 None.

9. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

9.1 There are no financial implications as a result of this report. 

10. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

10.1 To comply with the Local Authority (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and 
Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 and the Council’s 
Constitution, the Leader is required to make regular reports to Council on 
decisions taken using urgency provisions as detailed at Article 16.7.3(d) of the 
Council’s Constitution.


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the meeting held on 16 June 2016
	5 Communications (including Chairman's Announcements)
	8 Strategic Alliance - Greater Cambridgeshire Greater Peterborough (GCGP) Local Enterprise Partnership
	9 Members on committees and policy development groups
	10 Representatives on outside bodies
	11 Leader's report on urgent decisions

